UNITED NATIOMS

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY

Distr.
.GEIERAL

AJAC.105/C.2/5R.266
16 March 1977

‘ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

COMMITTEE ON THE PEACEFUL USES OF OUTER SPACE
LEGAL SUB-COIMITTEE
‘ Sixteenth»session
‘SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 266th MEETING
Heid at Headquarters, lNew York, :
on Monday, 1l March 1977, at 3 p.m.

Chairman: Mr. WYZNER (Poland)

CONTENTS

Statement by the Chalrman
Adoptlon of the agenda
Organlzatlon of work

General exchange of views .

This record is subject to correction.

" Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages, preferably
in the same language as the text to which they refer. They should be set forth in
a. memorandum and also, if possible, incorporated in a copy of the record. They
should be sent within one week of the date of this document to the Chief, Official
“Records Edltlng Sectlon, Department of Conference Serv1ces, room LX-2332.

Any correctlons to the records of the meetlngs of thls session will be

consolldated in a single corrlgendum, to be issued shortly after the end of the
sess1on. 5 e :

77-55326 3



A/AC.105/C.2/8R.266
English
rage 2

The meeting was called to order at 3.25 p.m.

STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRMAN

1. The CHAIRMAN said that continuing develcgments in space techrology required
parallel development of the law of outer space. Although the Sub-Committee had
not been successful in formulating international treaties as speedily as might
have been wished, at the end of each of its sessions it had nevertheless menaged
to make significant progress despite the novelty and complexity of the legal
problems which it had had to resolve.

2. All four outer space treaties which the Sub-Committee had helped to prepare
had entered into force. Seventy-two States had becorme parties to the 1967 Treaty
on Principles Governing the Activities of States in the Exploration and Use of
Outer Space, 67 States to the 1968 Agresment on the Rescue of Astronauts, the
Return of Astronauts and the Return of Objects Launched into Outer Space,

41 States to the 1973 Convention on International Liability for Demage Caused

by Space Objects, and T States to the Convention on the Registration of Objects
Launched into Outer Space, which had entered inte fcrce on 15 September 1976.

3% In accordance with article 3 of the Convention on Registration, the
Secretary-General had established a register in which information furnished under
the Convention would be recorded, and States had been so notified. Two States,
namely Canade and the United States of America, had notified the Secretary-

General that they had established national registers under article 2 of that
Convention.

4, At its preceding session, the Sub-Committee had continued its work on the
draft treaty relating to the moon, giving priority to the question of the natural
resources of the moon; in the view of many delegations, resolution of the latter
question would greatly facilitate agreement on the other two remaining issues,
namely, the scope of the treaty and information to be furnished on missions to
the moon. Unfortunately, notwithstanding the substantial efforts of Working
Group I, the Sub-Committee had not been successful in reaching a final solution.

5. At the fifteenth session Working Group II had been successful in formulating

nine principles governing the use by States of artificial earth satellites for

direct television broadcasting. A number of important and difficult metters

still had to be resolved, and any progress the Sub-Committee might make in that

- and any other area would :-be a suitable contribution to the celebration of the
twentieth anniversary of the modern space era, which had begun in 1957 with

the launching of the first artificial satellite by the Soviet Union. In that

connexion, the World Administrative Radio Conference for the Planning of the

Broadcasting Satellite Service which had been convened by ITU had only recently

concluded its work in Geneva. It was to be hoped that the progress made at

that Conference with regard to many technical aspects of broadcasting by satellite:

would help the Sub-Committee to solve at its current session the outstanding

political and legal questions relating to DBS and reach agreement on a full set
of principles.

-



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.266
English
Page 3

(The Chairman)

6. VWorking Group IIT had continued at the preceding sossion its detailed
consideration of the legal implications of remote sensing of the earth and had
made significant progress in formulating draft principles on certain "common
elements" in the positions of delegations. Eowever, e number of undecided
rassages in square brackets still remained in the drafi principles formulsted by
that Working Group.

7. The Sub-Committee had not considered the item "Matters relating to Ehe
definition and/or delimitation of outer space and outer space activities” in a
more substantial manner at its preceding session owing to limitations of time.
However, a mumber of very useful statements had teen made on the subject,
stressing the importance of the item and expressing the wish that it should
receive more detailed consideration in future cessions.

8. In considering the Sub-Committee's report on its fifteenth session, the
Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space had talien note of the Sub-Committee's
work on the draft treaty relating to the moon and had expressed the hope that
further determined efforts would be made to firalize the text of that Treaty.

The Committee had agreed that the Sub-Committee should continue to consider the
draft treaty as a matter of high priority. The Comuittee had also noted progress
made on the questions of direct televisicn bracdcssting by satellites and remote
sensing and had agreed that those items should continue to be dealt with as & - i
matter of high priority. As to the question of the cefinition and/or delimitetion
of outer space and outer space activities, the Commi:tee had agreed that the
Sub-Committee's work in that area should be continued, and it had requested the
Secretariat to revise the background paper and prepare a synoptlc table of
-proposals on that subject.

9. In its resolution 31/8, the General Assembly haod endorsed the report of
the parent Cormittee and had noted with satisfaction the work of its fifteenth
session. The Assembly had also recommended thas high priority should be given
to the draft treaty relating to the moon, the elaborstion of draft principles
governing direct television broadcasting and the 1 egael implications of remote
sensing and that the remaining time should be devoted to the question of
definition and/or delimitation of outer space and outer space activities. The
time that had elapsed since the fifteenth session had enabled delegations to
give further thought to the outstanding issues, and he was confident that the
Sub-Committee would ecarry its work substantially forwvard at the current session
in its usual spirit of mutual understanding and co-operation.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

lO. The agenda was adopted.

ORGANIZATION OF WORK

11. The CHAIRMAN suggested thaf the Sub-Committee should devote the first week
of its session to agenda item 2, the second week to agenda item U and the third

' A




A/AC.105/C.2/SR.266
English
Page k

(The Chairman)

week to agenda item 3. At the end of the third weeck, the Sub-Committee could

then consider how best to use the remaining time, having regard for the
consideration of item 5 and the adoption of the report. There should be a certain
degree of flexibility with respect to the allocation of time between agendsa

items 2, 4 and 3, on the understanding, however, that the same high priority
should be accorded to all three.

12. He suggested that, as at the fifteenth session, the Sub-Committee should
establish three working groups. Working Group I wouid consider agenda Ztem 2,
Working Group II would consider agenda item 3, and Working Group ITI wouid
consider agenda item 4. Mr. Haraszti (Hungary) ‘could continue to serve as

Chairman of Working Group I, and the chairmanship of the other Working Groups
could be decided after the appropriate consultations.

~13. Mr. MACAULAY (Nigeria) said that it would be difficult for the Sub-Committee
"to discuss agenda item 4 without first deciding upon = definition of outer space
itself. He therefore suggested that agenda item 5 should be divided into two
parts and that the question of the definition of cuter space should be discussed
at the same time as agenda item 4.

lh. The CHAIRMAN said that, according to paragrarh 4 of General Assembly -
esolution 31/8, agenda items 2, 3 and 4 should be zccorded high priority. He
' appealed to the representative oP Nigeria not to insist on his suggestion.

15. Mr. MACAULAY (Nigeria) agreed not to insist upon hls sug~nst1on.

16. Mr. DELROT (Belgium) said that his delegatlon had made arrangements for the
travel of its experts on the assumption that the agenda items would be discussed
in the order set out 'in the provisional agenda. However, if it suited members
of the Sub-Committee to discuss items in the order suzgested by the Chairman,
his delegation would have no objection. ;

17. Mr. GREENWOOD (United Kingdom) said thet his delegation had also made its
arrangements on the assumption that agenda item 3 would follow agenda item 2.
His delegation would not object to the proposed change.in the order of items if

that was the general wish, but he asked: that delegat’ons should be 1nformed sooner
of any changes that were to be made.

18. Mr. HOSENBELL (Unlted States of America) said that his delegation had
requested a change in the order of agenda items because of problems concerning

the availability of personnel. He hoped that the proposed new order of items
would be acceptable to the other delegations.

19. Mr. LINDENBERG SETTE (Brazil) said that his delegétioh was prépared to discuss
items in any order which was both acceptable to delegations and consistent with
the criteria established by the General Assembly.

fuss



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.266
English
Page 5

20. The CHATRVMAN said that, if there was no objection, he would take it that the
Sub—Comaittee wished tO‘follow the programme of work which he had suggested.

2. It wmas: so-decwRed.

22. The C%AIRMAN 1nformed the Committee that Colombia, Ecualor, Guyana and
Venezuela had requested the right to participate in the Sub-Committee's meetings.
Since the granting of observer status wes the prerogative of the Committee on
the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space, he suggested that thz Sub-Committee should take
no formal decision on the matter but that the representatives of the States in
“'question should be permitted to attend the formal meetings of the Sub-Committee
and to direct to the Chalr thelr requests for the floor if they wished to make a
statement. . :

23. It was so decided.
GENERAL EXCHANGE OF VIEWS | - | : .

24, Mr. PIRODOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that space activities
were increasingly linked to economic, scientific and cultural developrment.
Furthermore, in accordance with article 1 6f the 1967 Treaty on Principles
Governing the Activities of States in the Exploration and Use of Outer Space,
outer space activities benefited all countries, and not just the countries
directly involved. The concept that the exploration and use of outer space was
the province of all mankind had thus stood the test of time. It was importent
that all States should become Parties to the 1967 Treaty, and the Sub-Committe=z
should launch an appeal to that effect.

25." In future agreements on’ 1nternat10nal space law, the formula "the province
of all mankind" should continue to be used. Several recent events had shown that
spece activities were indeed the province of all mankind; he mentioned the

signing of the Convention on the International Organization for. Meritime Satelllte
Communication (INMARSAT), by which maritime communication by satellite was made
aveilable to all States, and the report of 16 February 1977 (A/AC.105/C.1/L.96)
in-“which the Soviet Union had announced that it was prepared to carry out work

on remote sensing of the territory of other States and to make the resulting
data available to the States concerned on the basis of the appropriate agreements.
The Sub-Committee would be able to do much to ensure that outer space activities
would continue to promote peace, friendship and internationsal co-operation.

26, " With respect to the coming session, the conclusion of a treaty relating to -
the moon had been delayed because of disagreement over the legal status of the
netural resources of the moon. However, the two opposing positions had auch in
common, and every effort should be made to reach a consensus.- It might be
possible to do so by using treaty language which suited all parties but which d1d
rot subs+antrvely affect the content of the over-all agreement

27. With respect to'agenda item 3, his delegation had msde 1gn1f1cant
concessions on those principles which had already been established, and he

fsun



A/AC.105/C.2/SR. 266
English
Page 6

(Wr. Pirodov, USSR)

regretted that not all‘delegations had acted in a similar menner, Nevertheless,
it should be possible to reach an agreement on principles for direct television
broadcasting at the current session. In that connexion, it was extremely
important to reach agreement on the so-called principle of prior consent. Such
an agreencnt would not hinder the development of televisior broadcasting by
satellite, and the principle of .prior consent to foreign -direct television
broadcastlng would be qulte consistent with the technicel decisions taken at the
ITU Conference at Geneva in January—Feb*uary 197T7.

28. With respect to agenda item 4, his delegetlon suggested that the Sub-Cormittee
should establish specific criteria for the division of remotely-sensed date ;nto
two categories, namely data which could be freely disseminated and published =

for general use, and data which could be disseminated only with the agreement of
the sensed State. Soviet specialists had reached the conclusion that & spatial

resolution of 50 metres could be used as the criterion for dividing data into
the two categories.

29. Ms. RYNEN (Committee:on Space Research) said that because basic science in
general: and'space research in particular had an increasing influence on human
society in all its facets, the activities of COSPAR: were 1ncrea51n”ly related to
the legal aspects of space research. :

30. In December 1976 the ‘issue’ of the dellmltatlon of outer space hod beea
suddenly thrust to the:fore when eight States.in the area of the Equator had
claimed priority rights.on the space above their territory up to an altitude of
35,000 kilometres. The States concerned had expleined that their aim was to
secure for themselves the advantages of outer space, but they had not indicated
whether they were planning to levy:taxes on the-use of the space they had claimed
or ‘how their'claim would be enforced.. In that.-connexion, document A/AC.105/164,
which had been prepared by COSPAR at the request of the, Sc1ent1f1c and Technlcal
" Sub-Committeé, might provide an answer to the question of the delimitation of .~
outer space, partlcularly with regard to the definition of . its lower bourdary,_

31." The discussion of the - scope of the draft treaty relatlng to the moon seemed
to centre on whether the treaty should apply only to.the moon or to.cther
celestial bodies as well. ' If the latter was.-to be.the case, one p0531b111ty
would be to restrict the application of the treaty to the celestial bodles cf the
planetary system alone. The phrase "other celestial bodies" would _encompass all
the bodies of cosmic space, including the most remote ones, which would never

be reached by man and which might even be inhabited by other intelligent beings
and COSPAR had in the past pointed out the neo-colonial aspect of such a
situation. On the other hand, the restricted extension of the treaty to "the
other bodies of the planetary system" would not entail such dlfflcultles, since
evidently none of those bodles were populated :

32. Another d1ff1cult matter wa.s the deflnltlon of the term "natural resources"

of celestial bodies. The proposals put forward so far had been based on the
concept of economic profit to be:derived from extra-terrestrial materlals.

looe



A/AC.105/C.2/SR.266
English
Page T

(Ms. Rynen)

Hovever, it was questionable whether lunar or planetary mate?lal couid ::gﬁnaly
yield economic profit, in view of the expense of planetary travel. b g?es S ’
she suggesteqd defining the natural resources of the moon and other bo ; el

the planetary system as everything of their surface or under it which z . e
origin, nature or composition served mankind; that would ccver those ma ?rltzfic
vhich, while not keving commercial value in the strict sense, were of SClin
interest to mankind. A definition which ircluded the space abov? ?he égr*zzee
of the planets would provide for the remote possibility of exploiting the hug

. h
dmounts of energy that existed in the atmospheres of certain planets, such as
Jupiter,

33. A COSPAR Working Group was concerned with the application of spacedrgsiaLCh
to meteorology and earth surveys. A series of manuals had been Produci t U

the benefit of scientists, mainly in developing countri§83 ho 'wlehed fotigse P
stations for the reception of remote-sensing data. A limited number.o COSPAR
menuals was still available. The forthcoming twentieth plenary meeting of ’
to be held at Tel Aviv in 1977, would include a symposium, organlzed_ln :
co-operation with FAO ang WMO, on the contribution of space observations to

global fooq information systems.

34, With regard to the exploration of the planetary system, the International
Council of Scientific Unions haed agreed at its General Assembly a@ A
Washington, D. C., in October 1976 to establish a major co-operative LS
programme to be known ag the International Solar System Programme (ISOP)', CQSPAR
had been asked to organize the Programme and was in the process of establishing )

& Steering Committee. It was expected that work would begin in the summer of 197T.

35. Lastly, COSPAR welcomed the possibility of convening a United Nations

Conference on Outer Space Matters in 1978 and was willing to contribute to such
& conference in any way deemed appropriate.

he meeting rose at 4.35 p.m.





